PUBLIC
SCHOOLS

BOARD OF EDUCATION

REGULAR MEETING

September 26, 2016 — 7:00 p.m.
Whitmore Lake High School Media Center



WHITMORE LAKE PUBLIC SCHOOLS
BOARD OF EDUCATION

Mission Statement

Partnering with students, parents, and the community to
provide exceptional, personalized education.

REGULAR MEETING

Monday, September 26, 2016 - 7:00 p.m.

Whitmore Lake High School Media Center

CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

BOARD OF EDUCATION
ROLL CALL

CALL TO THE PUBLIC

BOARD CLARIFICATION

SPECIAL PRESENTATION

STUDENT COUNCIL
COMMITTEE REPORTS

CONSENT ITEMS

7430 Whitmore Lake Rd.
Whitmore Lake, MI 48189

“The meeting is a meeting of the Board of Education in public
for the purpose of conducting the School District’s business and
is not to be considered a public community meeting. There is a
time for public participation during the meeting as indicated in
the agenda.”

Superintendent DeKeyser will present a Letter of Commendation
from National Merit Scholarship Program and community
contributions to biological and habitat awareness.

Karolyn Wagner will present the student council report.

Approval of minutes from September 12, 2016 Board of
Education Regular meeting. (Attachment 1)

Approve fund transfer of $254,019 in payments from Accounts
Payable as per attachment 2; further, to approve the transfer of
$242,005 from Accounts Payable to cover the payrolls of
August 12, 2016, and August 26, 2016. (Attachment 2)



OLD BUSINESS

NEQLA

NEW BUSINESS

Personnel

NEOLA

L-4029 Tax Rate

CLOSED SESSION

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT

Building Level Report

OTHER INFORMATION

ANNOUNCEMENTS

CALL TO THE PUBLIC

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS

ADJOURNMENT

NEOLA Policy, Conflict of Interest, updates and revisions
second reading (Attachment 3). Approval is recommended.

Motion to approve the hire of Jaylon Sims as a full time
Elementary School Music teacher for the 2016-17 school year at
Stepl on the WLEA BA salary scale with a hire date of
September 14, 2016.

Attachment 4 contains NEOLA policies for a first reading.

Attachment 5 contains L.-4029 2016 Tax Rate Request.
Approval is recommended.

The Board will adjourn to go into closed session to discuss a
personnel matter. Roli call vote required

Elementary School Principal, Sue Wanamaker, will present the
4th Quarter Focus School Report for the 2015-2016 school year
with the Board of Education.

Dennis Boggs has accepted the position (Step 1) lifeguard at $9
per hour for Community Recreation.

The Homecoming Parade will be Friday, October 07, 2016 at
4:00 p.m. on Main Street beginning at Polly Market and
ending at the Northfield Township Public Safety Building.

The next Meeting of the Board of Education will be a
Workshop Meeting held on Monday, October 10, 2016 at
7:60 p.m. in the High School Media Center.

The next Regular Meeting will be held on Monday, October
24,2016 at 7:00 p.m. in the High School Media Center.

Mr. Henry, Mrs. McCully, Mrs. Kritzman, Mrs. LaForest, Mrs.
Slagle, Mrs. Schwennesen, and Mr. Dignan



Please fill out a “Public Participation Request” form if you wish to address the Board prior to the Public
Comment section of the meeting. Please include your name, address and topic you wish to speak on.
Those wishing to speak in Public Comment are limited to three (3) minutes.

0000 — BYLAWS
0160 - MEETINGS
0167.3 — Public Participation at Board Meetings
Tape or video recordings are permitted subject to the following conditions:
A. No obstructions are created between the Board and the audience.
B. No interviews are conducted in the meeting room while the Board is in session.

C. No commentary, adjustment of equipment, or positioning of operators is made that would
distract either the Board or members of the audience while the Board is in session.

The person operating the recorder should contact the Superintendent prior to the Board meeting to review
possible placement of the equipment.

M.C.L. 15.253(4)(5)(6), 380.1808
Revised 9/27/2010
Use of Recording Devices

Anyone attending a school event who wishes to record the activity on a visual recording device shall be
asked to abide by the following rules:

A. The recorder must operate the device within the area designated by the principal or director
of the activity.

B. The camera must not block the view of any other attendees or interfere with others who seek
to record the activity.

C. Those who record or assist a recorder must not block any passageways nor interfere with any
other attendee’s participation or observation of the activity.

D. If sound is also being recorded, the recorder must not ask other attendees to be quiet or to
change their behavior in order to improve the quality of the sound.

E. If the District is recording the activity, the principal may arrange for a person to obtain a
copy providing s/he agrees to provide a tape and pay whatever the principal may need to
charge to cover the costs of transfer.

Where the District does not possess the appropriate license or permission to allow the recording of a
copyrighted work or performance, notice will be given, when possible prior to the exhibit or performance.
Announcements shall be made at the beginning of any such exhibit or performance.






MEMBERS PRESENT

MEMBERS ABSENT

ADMINISTRATORS PRESENT

OTHERS PRESENT

CALL TO ORDER

CALL TO THE PUBLIC

STUDENT COUNCIL

CONSENT ITEMS

NEW BUSINESS

Personnel

NEOLA

MASB

Whitmore Lake Public Schools

BOARD OF EDUCATION

Regular Meeting Minutes

September 12, 2016 — High School Media Center — 7:00 p.m.

Ken Dignan (President), Lisa McCully (Vice President), Rita
LaForest (Secretary), Michelle Kritzman (Trustee), and Laura
Schwennesen (Trustee)

Bob Henry (Treasurer), and Lynn Slagle (Trustee)

Superintendent, Tom DeKeyser, Director of Business & Operations,
Denise Kerrigan, Elementary Principal and ECC Director, Sue
Wanamaker, Director of Instruction, Jill Henry, and Community
Relations & Recreation Director, Maria Carter-Ewald

Staff, parents and members of the community
At 7:02 p.m. by President Ken Dignan.
None

Student Council Representative, Karolyn Wagner, was unable to
attend the meeting. She will update the Board at the next meeting.

Motion to approve the minutes from the August 22, 2016 Board of
Education Workshop-Retreat meeting, and the August 22, 2016
Regular meeting made by Mr. Dignan; supported by Mrs.
Schwennesen.

Ayes — 5; Nays — 0, motion carried 5 — 0

Superintendent DeKeyser shared that Molly Lindeman replaced Ms.
Gordon and is teaching 3 sections of math at the High School.

Motion to approve the hire of Molly Lindeman as a part time (.67)
High School math teacher for the 2016-17 school year at step 1 on
the WLEA BA salary scale with a hire date of August 31, 2016 made
by Mr. Dignan; supported by Mrs. LaForest.

Ayes — 5; Nays — 0, motion carried 5 - 0

Superintendent DeKeyser shared NEOLA policy, Conflict of
Interest, updates and revisions with the Board for a first reading.
Any errors or questions should be directed to DeKeyser prior to the
next board meeting on September 26, 2016 where approval will be
recommended.

Mr. Dignan shared information about The Michigan Association of
School Boards 2016 Delegate Assembly scheduled for Thursday,
November 10, 2016. He also stated that he would not be able to
attend. Mrs. Schwennesen shared that she would be interested in
attending.

Page 1 of 3

WLPS Board of Education — Regular Meeting 9/12/2016



Building, Site, and Recreation

SUPERINTENDENT REPORT

Motion to appoint Mrs. Schwennesen as Whitmore Lake Public
Schools 2016 Delegate to the Michigan Association of School
Boards Assembly made by Mr. Dignan; supported by Mrs. McCully.
Ayes — 5; Nays — 0, motion carried 5 - 0

Superintendent DeKeyser shared the following information
highlighting areas of the factlities that could require repairs /
updates. He also gave Board members a tour of the high school to
view areas that could need addressing in the near future.

1) WLES - Cracking sidewalks

2) WLES — update art classroom to include storage cabinets and
sink.

3) WLES —update classroom for use as a computer lab

4) WLMS — parking lot repairs

5) Athletic field - track resurfacing and upgrade to include pole
vault, baseball and softball fields drainage issues, and fencing
around fields.

6) WLHS — Theater seating and floors, stage tloor, back stage
lighting, theater storage area.

7} WLHS Pool area — locker room drain issues and retile, pool
cover, lighting and water pump.

Mr, Dignan suggested replacing the cement pad at the east end of
the elementary with grass and benches along the walkway. He also
suggested replacing the placard located in the HS parking lot
walkway. Mrs. LaForest inquired about the concrete repairs at the
high school. Mr. DeKeyser shared that some concrete leveling
would be required throughout the district facilities.

Mrs. Schwennesen inquired about a middle school classroom issue
when it rains. Mr. DeKeyser shared there is a draining issue in the
court yard and it could be investigated. Mr. Dignan and Mrs.
LaForest indicated that area was looked at previously and the aption
was very costly.

Superintendent DeKeyser shared the following:

1) Information discussed at the Board Retreat regarding the
wireless infrastructure. He informed the board the Erate quote
was lower than expected to maximize the band width for an
estimated cost of $33,000. He suggested including this on the
next agenda.

Mr. Dignan shared it is critically necessary for the district to move
forward. He also acknowledged that the cost is low when compared
to the market. Mrs. Kritzman, and Mrs. McCully shared they agree
the sooner we can get the technology in place for students to use, it
will help in their education.

Mrs. Schwennesen shared she agreed and inquired how much time
is required to implement the wireless infrastructure. Mr. DeKeyser
shared if implementation started in October 2016 it would be close
to December 2016 before it is complete.

Page 2 of 3

WLPS Board of Education — Regular Meeting 9/12/2016



OTHER INFORMATION

ANNOUNCEMENTS

CALL TO THE. PUBLIC

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS

ADJOURNMENT

Mrs. LaForest inquired when the bid would expire. Mr. DeKeyser
shared it is good through December 2016.

Motion to instruct the Superintendent to move forward procuring
the necessary technology upgrades for the wireless infrastructure,
not to exceed $40,000, and to present the Board with an amended
budget report for approval at a future meeting made by Mr. Dignan;
supported by Mrs. Kritzman.

Mrs. Kritzman acknowledged that the $40,000 would include the
wireless capabilities at the athletic field too.

Ayes — 5, Nays — 0, motion carried 5 — 0

2) The student enrollment is on target for where we budgeted for
the 2016 — 17 school year. Mr. DeKeyser shared detailed
information regarding the Elementary School teacher / student
ratio and is looking at the numbers daily. He also shared that
each classroom is also assisted by Teacher Consultants and
Paraprofessionals.

The Board acknowledged the resignation of the Elementary School
Music Teacher and the hiring of Hillary Hawkes as Paraprofessional
at the Early Childhood Center.
The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Education will be
held on Monday, September 26, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. in the WLHS
Media Center.
None
None
Motion fo adjourn the Regular Meeting at 8:41 p.m. made by Mrs.
McCully; supported by Mrs. LaForest.
Ayes - 5; Nays- 0, motion carried 5-0.

Rita A. LaForest, Secretary, Board of Education Date

Whitmore Lake Public Schools

Page 3 of 3

WLPS Board of Fducation — Regular Meeting 9/12/2016






Whitmore Lake Public Schools
Business Office Transactions

For the Month Ending:
August 31, 2016

Payroll Transactions August 12, 2016 $ 135,851
August 26, 2016 $ 106,154
$ 242 005

Accounts Payable Transactions $ 254,019







E EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION BYLAWS
SCHOOL DISTRICT 0140/page 12 of 19

REVISED BYLAW 0144.3 - VOL. 30, NO. 2

L. avoid being placed in a position of conflict of interest, and
refrain from using their Board positions for personal partisan
gain;

take no private action that will compromise the Board or
administration, and respect the confidentiality of information
that is privileged under applicable law;

remember always that their first and greatest concern must
be for the educational welfare of the students attending the
public schools.

Source: Board of Directors, National School Boards Association.

Conflict of Interest

Board members shall perform their official duties in a manner free
from conflict of interest. To this end:

A. No Board member shall use his/her position as a Board
member to bhenefit either himself/herself or any other

individual or agency apart from the total interest of the
School District.

When a member of the Board determines that the possibility
of a personal interest conflict exists, s/he should, prior to the
matter being considered, disclose his/her interest (such
disclosure shall become a matter of record in the minutes of
the Board), and thereafter shall abstain from participation in
both the discussion of the matter and the vote thereon.

A member of the Board is presumed to have a conflict of
interest if the member or his/her family member has a
financial interest, or a competing financial interest, in the
contract or other financial transaction or is an employee of
the School District.

Having a child in the District does not alone constitute a
conflict of interest or financial interest in a contract or other
financial transaction of the Schoeol District.




B EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION BYLAWS
SCHOOL DPISTRICT 0140/page 13 of 19

“Family member” means a person’s spouse or spouse’s sibling
or child; a person’s sibling or sibling’s spouse or child; a
person’s child or child’s spouse; or a person’s parent or
parent’s spouse, and includes these relationships as created
by adoption or marriage.

1. A Board member is not considered to have a financial
interest in any of the following instances:

a. A contract or other financial transaction
between the School District and any of the
following:

1)

A corporation in which the individual is a
stockholder owning 1% or less of the total
stock outstanding in any class if the
stock is not listed on a stock exchange or
owning stock that has a present market
value of $25,000.00 or less if the stock is
listed on a stock exchange.

A corporation in which a trust, if the
individual is a beneficiary under the
trust, owns 1% or less of the total stock
outstanding in any class if the stock is
not listed on a stock exchange or owns
stock that has a present market value of
$25,000.00 or less if the stock is listed on
a stock exchange.

A professional limited liability company
organized pursuant to the Michigan
limited liability company act, if the
individual is an employee but not a
member of the company.



ICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION BYLAWS
SCHOOCL DISTRICT 0140 /page 14 of 19

A contract or other financial transaction
between the School District and any of the
following:

1) A corporation in which the individual is
not a director, officer, or employee.

2) A firm, . partnership, or other
unincorporated association, in which the
individual is not a partner, member, or
employee.

3) A corporation or firm that has an
indebtedness owed to the individual.

A contract between the School District and the
intermediate school district.

A contract awarded to the lowest qualified
bidder, upon receipt of sealed bids pursuant to
a published notice for bids if the notice does not
bar, except as authorized by law, any qualified
person, firm, corporation, or trust from bidding.
This does not apply to any amendments or
- renegotiations of a contract or to additional
payments under the contract that were not
authorized by the contract at the time of award.




BOARD OF EDUCATION

E EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BYLAWS

SCHOOL DISTRICT 0140/page 15 of 19

If the financial interest pertains to a proposed contract
with the District, the following requirements must be
met:

a.,

The Board member shall disclose the financial
interest in the contract to the Board with such
disclosure made a part of the official Board
minutes, If his/her direct financial interest
amounts to $250 or more or five percent (5%) or
more of the contract cost to the District, the
Board member shall make the disclosure in one
of two (2) ways:

1)

In writing, to the Board president {or if
the member is the Board president, to the
Board secretary) at least seven (7} days
prior to the meeting at which the vote on
the contract will be taken. The disclosure
shall be made public in the same manner
as the Board's notices of its public
mectings. {See Bylaw 0165.)

By announcement at a meeting at least
seven (7) days prior to the meeting at
which a vote on the contract is to be
taken. The Board member must use this
method of disclosure if his/her financial
interest amounts to $5000 or more.




P/ EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION BYLAWS -
SCHOOL DISTRICT 0140/page 16 of 19

Any contract in which there is a conflict of
interest as defined by this bylaw and the related
statute (M.C.L. 380.1203) must be approved by
a majority vote of the full Board without the vote
of any Board member with a financial interest.

However, if a majority of the members of the
Board are required to abstain from voting on a .
contract or other financial transaction due to a
financial interest, then for the purposes of that
contract or other financial transaction, the
members who are not required to abstain
constitute a quorum of the board and only a
majority of those members eligible to vote is
required for approval of the contract or financial
transaction,

The official minutes of the Board disclose the
name of each party involved in the contract, the
nature of the financial interest, and the terms of
the contract including the duration, financial
consideration between the parties, facilities or
services of the District included in the contract,
and the nature and degree of assignment of
District staff needed to fulfill the contract.

A Board member with a conflict of interest in a
contract may not participate in the discussion of
nor vote on the contract.




PR EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION BYLAWS
SCHOOL DISTRICT 0140/page 17 of 19

[SELECT ONE (1} OF THE FOLLOWING TWO (2} OPTIONS]

OPTION #1

{}) Board members shall not solicit or accept gratuities,
favors, or anything of monetary value from contractors,
. 1 nvelved—with Federal or
funds

OPTION #2

N Board members shall not solicit or accept
gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value
from contractors or parties to subcontracts
involved with Federal grant funds. A Board
member may, however, accept a gift of unsolicited
items of "nominal value" from a contractor or party
to subcontracts that do not involve Federal grant
funds. execeptthat aboardmember-mayacceptan
unselicited gift-of nominal-value—For purposes of this
section, “nominal value” means that the gift has a

monetary value of $.44 ?? or less JPICK-ONE-{1}-OF
THE TWO-{2) SUB-OPTIONS][END OF OPTIONS]

ticl 1SDadming ot
vendor—or-a—potential-vendor[In accordance with M.C.L.
380.634, the Michigan Department of Education (MDE}

- adjusts the limits on the value of gifts that may be
accepted from vendors or potential vendors for
Intermediate School District employees. The fiscal year
2014 - 15 cap for gifts was $56.]




P EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION BYLAWS
SCHOOL DISTRICT 0140/page 18 of 19

/M Board members must disclose any potential conflict
of interest which may lead to a violation of this
policy to the full Board.

A Board member may be appointed to serve as a volunteer
coach or supervisor of a student extra-curricular activity if all
of the following conditions are present:

1. the Board member receives no compensation for
service as a volunteer coach or supervisor;

the Board member abstains from voting on issues
before the Board concerning the program during the

period of time s/he serves as a volunteer coach or
supervisor;

there is no other qualified applicant available to fill a
vacant position; and

the appointing authority has received the results of a
criminal history check and criminal records check from
the Michigan State Police or the Federal Bureau of
Investigation for the Board member,

M.C.L. 15.183, 15.323, 380.1203

See also, Policy 6420, Conflict of Interest - Legal Counsel, Advisors,
or Consultants.

Indemnification

The Board may hold harmless, indemnify, pay, settle, or compromise

a judgment against a Board member to the extent allowed under the
law. '

M.C.L. 691.1408




E EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION ADMINISTRATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT 1130/page 1 of 6

REVISED POLICY - VOL. 30, NO. 2

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

| Staff members, officers, and agents shall perform their official duties in a manner
free from conflict of interest. To this end:

A. The maintenance of unusually high standards of honesty, integrity,
impartiality, and professional conduct by School District’s Board
members, employees, officers, and agents is essential to ensure
the proper performance of school business as well as to earn and
keep public confidence in the School District.

To accomplish this, the Board of Education has adopted the
following guidelines which apply to all District employees,
officers and agents, including members of the Board to assure
that conflicts of interest do not occur. These guidelines are not
intended to be all inclusive, nor to substitute for good judgment on
the part of all employees, officers, and agents.

1. No employee, officer, or agent shall engage in or have a
financial or other interest, directly or indirectly, in any
activity that conflicts or raises a reasonable question of
conflict with his/her duties and responsibilities in the school
system. When a staff member determines that the possibility
of a personal interest conflict exists, s/he should, prior to the
matter being considered by the Board or administration,
disclose his/her interest (such disclosure shall become a
matter of record in the minutes of the Board).

No staff member, officer, or agent shall use his/her position
to benefit either himself/herself or any other individual or
agency apart from the total interest of the School District.




E EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION ADMINISTRATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT 1130/page 2 of 6

If the financial interest pertains to a proposed contract with
the District, the following requirements must be met.

The staflf member, officer, or agent shall disclose the direct
financial interest in the contract to the Board with such
disclosure made a part of the official Board minutes. If
his/her direct financial interest amounts to $250 or more or
five percent (5%) or more of the contract cost to the District,
the staff member, officer, or agent shall make the disclosure
in one {1) of two (2) ways:

a. In writing, to the Board president at least seven (7}
days prior to the meeting at which the vote on the
contract will be taken. The disclosure shall be made
public in the same manner as the Board's notices of its
public meetings. (See Bylaw 0165.)

b. By announcement at a meeting at least seven {7) days

prior to the meeting at which a vote on the contract is

| to be taken. The staff member, officer, or agent must
use this method of disclosure if his/her financial

interest amounts to $5,000 or more.

Employees, officers, and agents shall not engage in
business, private practice of their profession, the rendering of
services, or the sale of goods of any type where advantage is
taken of any professional relationship they may have with any
student, client, or parents of such students or clients in the
course of their employment or professional relationship
with the School District. '

Included, by way of illustration rather than limitation are the
following:

a. the provision of any private lessons or services for a fee



DA EOLA of MICHIGAN
FOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION ADMINISTRATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT 1130/page 3 of 6

the use, sale, or improper divulging of any privileged
information about a student or client gained in the
course of the employee's, officer’s, or agent’s
employment or professional relationship with the
District through his/her access to School District
records

the referral of any student or client for lessons or
services to any private business or professional
practitioner if there is any expectation of reciprocal
referrals, sharing of fees, or other remuneration for
such referrals

the requirement of students or clients to purchase any
private goods or services provided by an employee,
officer, or agent or any business or professional
practitioner with whom any employee, officer, or
agent has a financial or other relationship, as a
condition of receiving any grades, credits, promotions,
approvals, or recommendations

Employces, officers, and agents shall not make use of
materials, equipment, or facilities of the School District in
private practice. Examples would be the use of facilities
before, during, or after regular business hours for service to
private practice clients, or the checking out of items from an
instructional materials center for private practice.

Should exceptions to this policy be necessary in order to provide
services to students or clients of the School District, all such
exceptions will be made known to the employee's supervisor and will

be disclosed to the Superintendent before entering into any private
relationship.




| EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION - ADMINISTRATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT 1130/page 4 of 6

Employees, officers, and agents can maynot participate in the
selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by a
Federal grant/award if s/he has a real or apparent conflict of
interest, Such a conflict of interest would arise when the employee,
officer, or agent, any member of his/her immediate family, his/her
partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any
of the parties described in this section, has a financial or other

_interest in or a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for a
contract.

SELECT OPTION #1 OR OPTION #2

OPTION #1

i1 Employees, officers, and agents can notNe—employee—may
solicit or accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary
value from contractors or parties to subcontracts.—avelved
with-Federal-grantfunds

OR

OPTION #2

}{ Employees, officers, and agents shall not solicit or accept
gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from
contractors or parties to subcontracts inveolved with
Federal grant funds. Employees, officers, and agents may,
however, accept a gift of unsolicited items of "nominal
value" from a contractor or party to subcontracts that do
not involve Federal grant funds. For purposes of this
section, "nominal wvalue"




E EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION - ADMINISTRATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT 1130/page 5 of 6

[In accordance with M.C.L. 380.634, the Michigan Department
of Education (MDE) adjusts the limits on the value of gifts that
may be accepted from vendors or potential vendors for
Intermediate School District employees. The fiscal year
2014 - 15 cap for gifts was $56.]

D. To the extent that the District has a parent, affiliate or
subsidiary organization that is not a State, local government or
Indian tribe, the School District may not conduct a

procurement action involving the parent, affiliate or subsidiary

organization if the School District is unable, or appears to be
unable, to be impartial.

Employees, officers and agents must disclose any potential
conflict of interest which may lead to a violation of this policy
to the School District. Upon discovery of any potential conflict
of interest, the School District will disclose, in writing, the
potential conflict of interest to the appropriate Federal
awarding agency or, if applicable, the pass-through entity.

The District will also disclose, in a timely manner, all violations
of Federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery or gratuity that
affect a Federal award to the appropriate Federal awarding
agency or, if applicable, the pass-through entity.

Employees, officers and agents found to be in violation of this
conflict of interest policy will be subject to disciplinary action
up to and including termination, as permitted by applicable
Board policy.

[DRAFTING NOTE: The School District has discretion over the
appropriate disciplinary actions. For example, the School
District may suspend or terminate the individual’s employment,
transfer the individual, end the District’s professional
relationship with that individual, or temporarily re-assign the
individual. All disciplinary actions must be in accordance with
applicable Federal, State, and local law, as well as any
collectively bargained agreements.]




38 EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION ADMINISTRATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT 1130/page 6 of 6

2 C.F.R. 200.112, 200.113, 200.318
M.C.L. 380.634, 380.1805(1)

© NEQLA 2016




E EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION PROFESSIONAL STAFF

SCHOOL DISTRICT 3110/page 1 of 6

REVISED POLICY - VOL. 30, NO. 2

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

| Staff members, officers, and agents shall perform their official duties in a manner
free from conflict of interest. To this end:

A,

The maintenance of unusually high standards of honesty, integrity,
impartiality, and professional conduct by School District’s Board
members, employees, officers, and agents is essential to ensure
the proper performance of school business as well as to earn and
keep public confidence in the School District.

To accomplish this, the Board of Education has adopted the
following guidelines which apply to all District employees,
officers and agents, including members of the Board to assure
that conflicts of interest do not occur. These gridelines are not
intended to be all inclusive, nor to substitute for good judgment on
the part of all employees, officers, and agents.

1. No employee, officer, or agent shall engage in or have a
financial or other interest, directly or indirectly, in any
activity that conflicts or raises a reasonable question of
conflict with his/her duties and responsibilities in the school
system. When a staff member determines that the possibility
of a personal interest conflict exists, s/he should, prior to the
matter being considered by the Board or administration,
disclose his/her interest (such disclosure shall become a
matter of record in the minutes of the Board).

No staff member, officer, or agent shall use his/her position
to benefit either himself/herself or any other individual or
agency apart from the total interest of the School District.




U EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION PROFESSIONAL STAFF
SCHOOIL DISTRICT 3110/page 2 of 6

If the financial interest pertains to a proposed contract with
the District, the following requirements must be met.

The staff member, officer, or agent shall disclose the direct
financial interest in the contract to the Board with such
disclosure made a part of the official Board minutes. If
his/her direct financial interest amounts to $250 or more or
five percent (5%) or more of the contract cost to the District,
the staff member, officer, or agent shall make the disclosure
in one (1) of two (2) ways:

a. In writing, to the Board president at least seven (7)
days prior to the meeting at which the vote on the
contract will be taken. The disclosure shall be made
public in the same manner as the Board's notices of its
public meetings. (See Bylaw 0165.)

By announcement at a meeting at least seven {7) days
prior to the meeting at which a vote on the contract is
to be taken. The staff member, officer, or agent must
use this method of disclosure if his/her financial
interest amounts to $5,000 or more.

Employees, officers, and agents shall not engage in
business, private practice of their profession, the rendering of
services, or the sale of goods of any type where advantage is
taken of any professional relationship they may have with any
student, client, or parents of such students or clients in the

course of their employment or professional relationship
with the School District.

Included, by way of illustration rather than limitation are the
following:

a. the provision of any private lessons or services for a fee




R/ EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION PROFESSIONAL STAFF
SCHOCL DISTRICT 3110/page 30of 6

the use, sale, or improper divulging of any privileged
information about a student or client gained in the
course of the employee's, officer’s, or agent’s
employment or professional relatiomship with the
District through his/her access to School District
records

the referral of any student or client for lessons or
services to any private business or professional
practitioner if there is any expectation of reciprocal
referrals, sharing of fees, or other remuneration for
such referrals ‘

the requirement of students or clients to purchase any
private goods or services provided by an employee,
officer, agent, or any business or professional
practitioner with whom any employee, officer, or
agent has a financial or other relationship, as a
condition of receiving any grades, credits, promotions,
approvals, or recommendations

Employees, officers, and agents shall not make use of
materials, equipment, or facilities of the School District in
private practice. Examples would be the use of facilities
before, during, or after regular business hours for service to
private practice clients, or the checking out of items from an
instructional materials center for private practice.

Should exceptions to this policy be necessary in order to provide
services to students or clients of the School District; all such
exceptions will be made known to the employee's, officer’s or
agent’s supervisor and will be disclosed to the Superintendent
before entering into any private relationship.




PR EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION PROFESSIONAL STAFF
SCHOOL DISTRICT 3110/page 4 of 6

Employees, officers, and agents can may-not participate in the
selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by a
Federal grant/award if s/he has a real or apparent conflict of
interest. Such a conflict of interest would arise when the employee,
officer, or agent, any member of his/her immediate family, his/her
partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any
of the parties described in this section, has a financial or other
interest in or a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for a
coniract,

SELECT OPTION #1 OR OPTION #2

OPTION #1

i1 Employees, officers, and agents can notNe-empleyeemay
solicit or accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary

value from contractors or parties to subcontracts.—invebed
with-FPederal grant-funds

OR

OPTION #2

}4 Employees, officers, and agents shall not solicit or accept
: gratuities, favors, or anything of momnetary value from
contractors or parties to subcontracts involved with
Federal grant funds. Employees, officers, and agents may,
however, accept a gift of unsolicited items of "nominal
value” from a contractor or party to subcontracts that do
not involve Federal grant funds. For purposes of this
section, "nominal value" means that the gift has a
monetary $.54.¢ or less.




E EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION l PROFESSIONAL STAFF
SCHOOL DISTRICT 3110/page Sof 6

[In accordance with M.C.L. 380.634, the Michigan Department
of Education (MDE} adjusts the limits on the value of gifts that
may be accepted from vendors or potential vendors for
Intermediate School District employees. The fiscal
year 2014 - 15 cap for gifts was $56.]

D. To the extent that the District has a parent, affiliate or

 subsidiary organization that is not a State, local government or
Indian tribe, the School District may mnot conduct a
procurement action involving the parent, affiliate or subsidiary
organization if the School District is unable, or appears to be
unable, to be impartial.

Employees, officers and agents must disclose any potential
conflict of interest which may lead to a violation of this policy
to the School District. Upon discovery of any potential conflict
of interest, the School District will disclose, in writing, the
potential conflict of interest to the appropriate Federal
awarding agency or, if applicable, the pass-through entity.

The District will also disclose, in a timely manner, all violations
of Federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery or gratuity that
affect a Federal award to the appropriate Federal awarding
agency or, if applicable, the pass-through entity.

F. Employees, officers and agents found to be in violation: of this
conflict of interest policy will be subject to disciplinary action
up to and including termination, as permitted by applicable
Board policy.

[DRAFTING NOTE: The School District has discretion over the
appropriate disciplinary actions. For example, the School
District may suspend or terminate the individual’s employment,
transfer the individual, end the District’s professional
relationship with that individual, or temporarily re-assign the
individual. All disciplinary actions must be in accordance with
applicable Federal, State, and local law, as well as any
collectively bargained agreements.]




E EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION PROFESSIONAL STAFF
SCHOOL DISTRICT 3110/page 6 of 6

2 C.F.R. 200.112, 200.113, 200.318
M.C.L. 380.634, 380.1805(1)

© NeoLA 2016



L EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION SUPPORT STAFF
__ SCHOOL DISTRICT 4110/page 1 of 6

REVISED POLICY - VOL. 30, NO. 2

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

| Staff members, officers, and agents shall perform their official duties in a manner
free from conflict of interest. To this end:

A. The maintenance of unusually high standards of honesty, integrity,
impartiality, and professional conduct by School District’s Board
members, employees, officers, and agents is essential to ensure
the proper performance of school business as well as to earn and
keep public confidence in the School District.

To accomplish this, the Board of Education has adopted the
following guidelines which apply to all District employees,
officers and agents, including members of the Board to assure
that conflicts of interest do not occur. These guidelines are not
intended to be all inclusive, nor to substitute for good judgment on
the part of all employees, officers, and agents.

1. No employee, officer, or agent shall engage in or have a
financial or other interest, directly or indirectly, in any
activity that conflicts or raises a reasonable question of
conflict with his/her duties and responsibilities in the school
system. When a staff member determines that the possibility
of a personal interest conflict exists, s/he should, prior to the
matter being considered by the Board or administration,
disclose his/her interest {such disclosure shall become a
matter of record in the minutes of the Board).

No staff member, officer, or agent shall use his/her position
to benefit either himself/herself or any other individual or
agency apart from the total interest of the School District.




E EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION SUPPORT STAFF
SCHOOL DISTRICT 4110/page 2 of 6

If the financial interest pertains to a proposed contract with
the District, the following requirements must be met.

The staff member, officer, or agent shall disclose the direct
financial interest in the contract to the Board with such
disclosure made a part of the official Board minutes. If
his/her direct financial interest amounts to $250 or more or
five percent {5%) or more of the contract cost to the District,
the staff member, officer, or agent shall make the disclosure
in one (1) of two (2} ways:

a. In writing, to the Board president at least seven (7)
days prior to the meeting at which the vote on the
contract will be taken. The disclosure shall be made
public in the same manner as the Board's notices of its
public meetings. {See Bylaw 0165.}

By announcement at a meeting at least seven (7) days
prior to the meeting at which a vote on the contract is
to be taken. The staff member, officer, or agent must
use this method of disclosure if his/her financial
interest amounts to $5,000 or more.

Employees, officers, and agents shall not engage in
business, private practice of their profession, the rendering of
services, or the sale of goods of any type where advantage is
taken of any professional relationship they may have with any
student, client, or parents of such students or clients in the

course of their employment or professional relationship
with the School District,

Included, by way of illustration rather than limitation are the
following:

a. the provision of any private lessons or services for a fee




A/ EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION SUPPORT STAFF
SCHOOL DISTRICT ‘ 4110/page 3 of 6

the use, sale, or improper divulging of any privileged
information about a student or client gained in the
course of the employee's, officer’s, or agent’s
employment or professional relationship with the
District through his/her access to School District
records

the referral of any student or client for lessons or
services to any private business or professional
practitioner if there is any expectation of reciprocal
referrals, sharing of fees, or other remuneration for
such referrals

the requirement of students or clients to purchase any
private goods or services provided by an employee,
officer, agent, or any business or professional
practitioner with whom any employee, officer, or
agent has a financial or other relationship, as a
condition of receiving any grades, credits, promotions,
approvals, or recommendations

Employees, officers, and agents shall not make use of
materials, equipment, or facilities of the School District in
private practice. Examples would be the use of facilities
before, during, or after regular business hours for service to
private practice clients, or the checking out of items from an
instructional materials center for private practice.

Should exceptions to this policy be necessary in order to provide
services to students or clients of the School District, all such
exceptions will be made known to the employee's, officer’s, or
agent’s supervisor and will be disclosed to the Superintendent
before entering into any private relationship.



4 EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION SUPPORT STAFF
SCHOOL DISTRICT 4110/page 4 of 6

Employees, officers, and agents can may-not participate in the
selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by a
Federal grant/award if s/he has a real or apparent conflict of
interest. Such a conflict of interest would arise when the employee,
officer, or agent, any member of his/her immediate family, his/her
partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any
of the parties described in this section, has a financial or other
interest in or a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for a
contract.

SELECT OPTION #1 OR OPTION #2

OPTION #1

[1 Employees, officers, and agents can notNe-employee-may
solicit or accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary
value from contractors or parties to subcontracts.—invelved
wdth-Federal srantfonds

OR .

OPTION #2

P{ Employees, officers, and agents shall not solicit or accept
gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from
contractors or parties to subcontracts involved with
Federal grant funds. Employees, officers, and agents may,
however, accept a gift of unsolicited items of "nominal
value" from a contractor or party to subcontracts that do
not involve Federal grant funds. For purposes of this




E EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION SUPPORT STAFF
SCHOOL DISTRICT 4110/page Soib

[In accordance with M.C.L. 380.634, the Michigan Department
of Education (MDE} adjusts the limits on the value of gifts that
may be accepted from vendors or potential vendors for
Intermediate School District employees. The fiscal
year 2014 - 15 cap for gifts was $56.]

D. To the extent that the District has a parent, affiliate or
subsidiary organization that is not a State, local government or
Indian tribe, the School District may not conduct a
procurement action involving the parent, affiliate or subsidiary
organization if the School District is unable, or appears to be
unable, to be impartial.

E. Employees, officers and agents must disclose any potential
conflict of interest which may lead to a violation of this policy
to the School District. Upon discovery of any potential conflict
of interest, the School District will disclose, in writing, the

potential conflict of interest to the appropriate Federal

awarding agency or, if applicable, the pass-through entity.

The District will also disclose, in a timely manner, ail violations
of Federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery or gratuity that
affect a Federal award to the appropriate Federal awarding
agency or, if applicable, the pass-through entity.

Employees, officers and agents found to be in violation of this
conflict of interest policy will be subject to disciplinary action
up to and including termination, as permitted by applicable
Board policy.

[DRAFTING NOTE: The School District has discretion over the
appropriate disciplinary actions. For example, the School
District may suspend or terminate the individual’s employment,
transfer the individual, end the District’s professional
relationship with that individual, or temporarily re-assign the
individual. Al disciplinary actions must be in accordance with
applicable Federal, State, and local law, as well as any
collectively bargained agreements.]




E] EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT

2 C.F.R. 200.112, 200.113, 200.318
M.C.L. 380.634, 380.1805(1)

© NeoLa 2016

SUPPORT STAFF
4110/page 6 of 6







E EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6110/page 1 of 8

REVISED POLICY - VOL. 30, NO. 2

GRANT FUNDS

It is the objective of the Board of Education to provide equal educational
opportunities for ail students within the District. Government agencies, as well as
foundations, businesses, and individuals, periodically offer both human and
material resources to the District that would benefit students and the educational
program. Therefore, it is the intent of the Board to consider grant proposals and
applications for their potential to enhance educational opportunities, the
educational environment, and the physical and mental growth for each student.

The Superintendent shall review new Federal education legislation and prepare
proposals for programs s/he deems would be of aid to the students of this District.
The Superintendent shall approve each such proposal prior to its submission, and
the Board shall approve all grants resulting from such proposals.

The Board regards available Federal funds of aid to local school districts and
communitics as a public trust. [t forbids the use of Federal monies for partisan
political activities and for any use that would not be in aceerd-accordance with
Federal regulations and guidelines-on-diserimination.

No Federal funds received by the District shall be used (1} to develop or distribute
materials, or operate programs or courses of instruction directed at youth, that are
designed to promote or encourage sexual activity, whether homosexual or
heterosexual; (2} to distribute or to aid in the distribution by any organization of
legally obscene materials to minors on school grounds; (3) to provide sex education
or HIV-prevention education in schools unless that instruction is age appropriate
and includes the health benefits of abstinence; or (4) to operate a program of
contraceptive distribution in schools.




E EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES

SCHOOL DISTRICT 6110 /page 2 of 8

Grant Proposal Development

A.

B.

All grant proposals must support at least one (1) District goal or
priority.

For projects where grant funds will not cover the entire cost of
project implementation, additional fund sources must be identified,
documented, and approved during the internal review process.

Grant Proposal Internal Review

A,

()

Each grant proposal shall be reviewed and approved by the
Superintendent prior to submission to the funding source.

The Superintendent shall present the following proposals to the
Board for approval:

() Government-funded proposals, regardless of the amount;
() Proposals with budgets exceeding $ .00; or

() Multi-school or District-wide proposals.

Grant Administration

A.

The administration of grants will adhere to all applicable Federal,
State, local, and grantor rules and regulations, including the
terms and conditions of the Federal awards, as well as District
policies and administrative guidelines.

The Superintendent is responsible for the efficient and effective

administration of grant awards through the application of sound
management practices.

The Superintendent is responsible for administering grant funds in
a manner consistent with underlying agreements,

preogramapplicable statutes, regulations, and objectives, and the
terms and conditions of the grant award.




U EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6110/page 3 of 8

The District, in recognition of its unique combination of staff,
facilities, and experience, shall employ internal controls, including
the organizational and management strategies necessary to assure
proper and efficient administration of grant awards.

All Federal funds received by the District will be used in accordance
with the applicable Federal law and regulations and the terms and
conditions of the Federal award. The Superintendent shall require
that each draw of Federal monies be aligned with the District’s
payment process (whether reimbursement, cash advance or a
combination). If funds are permitted to be drawn in advance, alil
draws will beis as close as administratively feasible to the related
program expenditures and that, when restricted, such monies are
used to supplement programs and funding and not to supplant or
replace existing programming or current funding.

The Superintendent is authorized to sign related documents for
grant administration, including documents required for submittal of
grant proposals.

Written amendments requiring the Superintendent’s signature
shall be presented to the Board for approval.

Employee positions established through the use of grant funding
shall terminate if and when the related grant funding ceases.

Program reports including but not limited to audit, site visits and
final reports shall be submitted to the Superintendent for review and
distribution to the Board and other appropriate parties.




E EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES

SCHOOL DISTRICT 6110/page 4 of 8

| Fiscal Financial Management

The financial management of grant funds shall be in compliance with all applicable
| Federal, State, local, and grantor rules, regulations, and assurances as well as
District policies and administrative guidelines.

| The SupesintendentDistrict shall provide for the following:

A.

Identification, in District accounts, of all grant awards received and
expended and the programs under which they were received. For
Federal programs and awards, identification shall include the

" Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) title and number,

Federal award identification number and year, name of the Federal
agency and name of the pass-through entity, as applicable.

Accurate, current, and complete disclosure of the financial results of

each Federallysponsered—project—Federal award or program in

accordance with the reporting requirements of the grant.

Records that adequately identify the source and application of
funds provided for Federally-funded activities. These records
must contain information pertaining to Federal awards,
authorizations, obligations, wunobligated balances, assets,
expenditures, income and interest and be supported by source




ﬂ EOLA of MICHIGAN

L OCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6110/page Sof 8

Effective control over, and accountability for, all funds,
property, and other assets. The District must adequately
safeguard all assets and assure that they are used solely for
authorized purposes.

Further, the District must:

1. establish and maintain effective internal control over the
Federal award that provides reasonable assurance that
the District is managing the Federal award in compliance
with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of the Federal award;

comply with Federal statutes, regulations and the terms
and coaditions of the Federal award;

evaluate and monitor the District’s compliance with
statutes, regulations and the terms and conditions of the
Federal award;

take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are
identified including noncompliance identified in audit
_findings; .. . .. - - - e B

take reasonable measures to safeguard protected
personally identifiable information and other information
the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity
designates as sensitive consistent with applicable
Federal, State, local, and tribal laws regarding privacy and
obligations of confidentiality.

Comparison of expenditures with budget amounts for each
Federal award.




ﬂj EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6110/page 6 of 8

Recordkeeping and written procedures as—may-berequired—to the
extent required by Federal, State, local, and grantor rules and

regulatmns perta_mmg to the grant award and accountablhty,

cash management
allowability

conflict of interest
procurement

equipment management

conducting technical evaluations of proposals and
selecting recipients

7. compensation and fringe benefits

8. travel

Disclosure of any potential conflict of interest and all mandatory
violation disclosures potentially affecting the Federal award/grant to
the Federal awarding agency or pass-through agency in accordance
with applicable Federal policy.

Insurance coverage for real property and equipment, if applicable,
equivalent to such property owned by the District.




E EOLA of MIiCHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION ‘ FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6110/page 7 of 8

Program Income

Program income means gross income earned by a grant recipient that is

directly generated by a supported activity or earned as a result of the Federal
award during the grant’s period of performance.

It includes, but is not limited to, income from fees for services performed, the
use or rental of real or personal property acquired under Federal awards, the
sale of commodities or items fabricated under a Federal award, license fees and
royalties on patents and copyrights, and principal and interest on loans made
with Federal award funds. Interest earned on advances of Federal funds is not
program income. Except as otherwise provided in Federal statutes, regulations
or the terms and conditions of the Federal award, program income does not
include rebates, credits, discounts and interest earned on any of them.
Additionally, taxes, special assessments, levies, fines and other such revenues
raised by a recipient are not program income unless the revenues are
specifically identified in the Federal award or Federal awarding agency
regulations as program income. Finally, proceeds from the sale of real
property, equipment or supplies are not program income.




|| EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6110/page 8 of 8

Unless it has received prior approval to use a different method or the terms
and conditions of the grant authorize a different method, the District uses the
deduction method of accounting for program income. Under the deduction
method, program income is deducted from total allowable costs to determine
the net allowable costs. Program income will only be used for current costs
unless the District is otherwise directed by the Federal awarding agency or
pass-through entity.

34 C.F.R. 75.707, 76.563, 76.565, 76.707
2 C.F.R. 200.56, 200.71, 200.77, 200.80, 200.112, 200.302, 200.307
2C. F R. 200.309, 200 310 200 313, 200.318-.320, 200.343{b)&(e)

Comphance Supplement for Smgle Audits of State and Loeal Governments
20 U.S.C. 7906

© NeoLa 2016




3L EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6111/page 1 of 3

REVISED POLICY - VOL. 30, NO. 2

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Superintendent shall establish and maintain effective internal control over
financial grants and awards that provide reasonable assurance that the program
and funds are managed in compliance with applicable statutes, regulations and
the terms and conditions of the awards. The District will have a process that
prov:des reasonable assurance regarding the ach1evement of the following

effectiveness and efficiency of operations;

B. reliability of reporting for internal and external use; and

C. compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The internal controls must provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
properly recorded and accounted for in order to permit the preparation of
reliable financial statements and Federal reports; maintain accountability over
assets; and demonstrate compliance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the
terms and conditions of the Federal award. The internal controls must also
provide reasonable assurance that these transactions are executed in
compliance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of
the Federal award that could have a direct and material effect on a Federal
award, as well as any other Federal statutes and regulations that are identified
in the Compliance Supplement. Finally, the Distriet’s internal controls must
provide reasonable assurance that all Federal funds, property, and other assets
are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition.




EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION 7 FINANCES

SCHOOL DISTRICT 6111/page 2 0f 3

The District shall:

A,

comply with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of the Federal awards;

evaluate and monitor its compliance with statutes, regulations, and
the terms and conditions of the award;

take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified
including noncompliance identified in audit findings; and

take reasonable measures to safeguard protected "personally
identifiable information" {"PII") and other information the awarding
agency or pass-through entity designates as sensitive or the District
considers sensitive consistent with applicable Federal, state, local,

and tribal laws and District policies regarding privacy and
obligations of confidentiality.

PII is defined at 2 C.F.R. 200.79 as "information that can be
used to distinguish or trace an individual’s identity, either
alone or when combined with other personal or identifying
information that is linked or linkable to a specific individual. "

However, the definition of PII is not anchored to any single
category of information or technology. Rather, it requires a

case-by-case assessment of the specific risk that an individual
can be identified.

2 C.F.R. 200.61-.62
2 C.F.R. 200.79
2 C.F.R. 200.203303




E! EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BCGARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6111/page 30of3

| Suggested resources:

A. "Standards for Internal Contrel in the Federal Government"
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;

"Internal Control Integrated Framework" (commonly referred to
as the Green Book) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission;

"Compliance Supplement" issued by the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget; and

Internal control guidance issued by the U.S. Department of
Education.

© NeorA 2016




_ﬂj EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6112/page 1 of 3

NEW POLICY - VOL. 30, NO. 2

CASH MANAGEMENT OF GRANTS

In order to provide reasonable assurance that all assets, including Federal, State,
and local funds, are safeguarded against waste, loss, unauthorized use, or

misappropriation, the Superintendent shall implement internal controls in the area
of cash management.

The District’s. payments methods shall minimize the time elapsing between the
transfer of funds from the United States Treasury or the Michigan Department of
Education (MDE) {pass-through entity} and disbursement by the District, regardless
of whether the payment is made by electronic fund transfer, or issuance or
redemption of checks, warrants, or payment by other means.

The District shall use forms and procedures required by the grantor agency or
pass-through entity to request payment. The District shall request grant funds
payments in accordance with the provisions of the grant. Additionally, the District’s
financial management systems shall meet the standards for fund control and
accountability as established by the awarding agency.

The Superintendent is authorized to submit requests for advance payments and
reimbursements at least monthly when electronic fund transfers are not used, and
as often as deemed appropriate when electronic transfers are used, in accordance
with the provisions of the Electronic Fund Transfer Act (15 U.S.C. 1693-1693r).

When the District uses a cash advance payment method, the following standards
shall apply:

A, The timing and amount of the advance payment requested will be as
close as is administratively feasible to the actual disbursement for

direct program or project costs and the proportionate share of any
allowable indirect costs.

The District shall make timely payment fo contractors in accordance
with contract provisions.




E EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6112/page 2 of 3

To the extent available, the District shall dishurse funds available
from program income (including repayments to a revolving fund),
rebates, refunds, contract settlements, audit recoveries, and interest
earned on such funds before requesting additional cash payments.

The District shall account for the receipt, obligation and expenditure
of funds.

Advance payments will be deposited and maintained in insured
accounts whenever possible.

Advance payments will be maintained in interest bearing accounts
unless the following apply:

1. The District receives less than $120,000 in Federal awards
per year.

The best reasonably available interest-bearing account would

not be expected to earn interest in excess of $500 per year on
Federal cash balances.

The depository would require an average or minimum balance
so high that it would not be feasible within the expected
Federal and non-Federal cash resources.

A foreign government or banking system prohibits or
precludes interest bearing accounts,




LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES

SCHOOL DISTRICT 6112/page 3 of 3

Pursuant to Federal law and regulations, the District may retain
interest earned in an amount up to $500 per year for administrative
costs. Any additional interest earned on Federal advance payments
deposited in'interest-bearing accounts must be remitted annually to
the Department of Health and Human Services Payment
Management System ("PMS"} through an electronic medium using
either Automated Clearing House ("ACH"} network or a Fedwire
Funds Service payment. Remittances shall include pertinent
information of the payee and nature of payment in the memo area
(often referred to as “addenda records” by Financial Institutions) as
that will assist in the timely posting of interest earned on Federal
funds. Pertinent details include the Payee Account Number ("PAN") if
the payment originated from PMS, or Agency information if the
payment originated from Automated Standard Application for
Payment ("ASAP"), National Science Foundation ("NSF"} or another
Federal agency payment system.

Applicable Laws, Regulations, and Guidance:
2 C.F.R. 200.305

© NeoLA 2016




L EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT ) 6114/page 1 of 8

NEW POLICY - VOL. 30, NO. 2

COST PRINCIPLES - SPENDING FEDERAL FUNDS

The Superintendent is responsible for the efficient and effective administration of
grant funds through the application of sound management practices. Such funds
shall be administered in a manner consistent with all applicable Federal, State and
local laws, the associated agreements/assurances, program objectives and the
specific terms and conditions of the grant award.

Cost Principles

Except where otherwise authorized by statute, costs shall meet the following general
criteria in order to be allowable under Federal awards:

A, Be necessary and reasonable for proper and efficient performance

and administration of the Federal award and be allocable thereto
under these principles.

To determine whether a cost is reasonable, consideration shall be
given to:

1. whether a cost is a type generally recognized as ordinary and
necessary for the operation of the District or the proper and
efficient performance of the Federal award;

the restraints or requirements imposed by such factors as
sound business practices, arm’s length bargaining, Federal,
State, local, tribal and other laws and regulations;

market prices for comparable goods or services for the
geographic area;

whether the individuals concerned acted with prudence in the
circumstances considering their responsibilities; and




E EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6114 /page 2 of 8

whether the cost represents any significant deviation from the
established practices or Board of Education policy which may
increase the expense.

While Federal regulations do not provide specific descriptions of
what satisfies the “necessary” element beyond its inclusion in the
reasonableness analysis above, whether a cost is necessary is
determined based on the needs of the program. Specifically, the
expenditure must be necessary to achieve an important program
objective. A key aspect in determining whether a cost is necessary
is whether the District can demonstrate that the cost addresses an
existing need, and can prove it.

When determining whether a cost is necessary, consideration may
be given to whether:

a. the cost is needed for the proper and efficient performance of
the grant program;

whether the cost is identified in the approved budget or
application;

whether there is an educational benefit associated with the
cost;

whether the cost aligns with identified needs based on results
and findings from a needs assessment;

whether the cost addresses program goals and objectives and
is based on program data.

A cost is allocable to the Federal award if the goods or services
involved are chargeable or assignable to the Federal award in
accordance with the relative benefit received.




EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATICN FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6114 /page 3 of 8

Conform to any limitations or exclusions set forth as cost principles
in Part 200 or in the terms and conditions of the Federal award.

Be consistent with policies and procedures that apply uniformly to
both Federally-financed and other activities of the District.

Be afforded consistent treatment. A cost cannot be assigned to a
Federal award as a direct cost if any other cost incurred for the
same purpose in like circumstances has been assigned as an
indirect cost under another award.

Be determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

Be representative of actual cost, net of all applicable credits or
offsets.

The term “applicable credits” refers to those receipts or reductions of
expenditures that operate to offset or reduce expense items allocable
to the Federal award. Typical examples of such transactions are:
purchase discounts; rebates or allowances; recoveries or indemnities
on losses; and adjustments of overpayments or erroneous charges.
To the extent that such credits accruing to or received by the State
relate to the Federal award, they shall be credited to the Federal
award, either as a cost reduction or a cash refund, as appropriate.

Be not included as a match or cost-share, unless the specific
Federal program authorizes Federal costs to be treated as such.




E EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6114 /page 4 of 8

H. Be adequately documented:

1.  in the case of personal services, the Superintendent shall
implement a system for District personnel to account for time
and efforts expended on grant funded programs to assure
that only permissible personnel expenses are allocated;

in the case of other costs, all receipts and other invoice
- materials shall be retained, along with any documentation

identifying the need and purpose for such expenditure if not
otherwise clear.

Selected Items of Cost

The District shall follow the rules for selected items of cost at 2 C.F.R. Part 200,
Subpart E when charging these specific expenditures to a Federal grant. When
applicable, District staff shall check costs against the selected items of cost
requirements to ensure the cost is allowable. In addition, State, District and
program-specific rules, including the terms and conditions of the award, may deem
a cost as unallowable and District personnel shall follow those rules as well.

Cost Compliance

The Superintendent shall require that grant program funds are expended and are
accounted for consistent with the requirements of the specific program and as
identified in the grant application. Compliance monitoring includes accounting for
direct or indirect costs and reporting them as permitted or required by each grant.




P EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES

SCHOOL DISTRICT 6114 /page 5 of 8

Determining Whether a Cost is Direct or Indirect;

A,

Direct costs are those costs that can be identified specifically with a
particular final cost objective, such as a Federal award, or other
internally or externally funded activity, or that can be directly
assigned to such activities relatively easily with a high degree of
accuracy. '

These costs may include: salaries and fringe benefits of employees
working directly on a grant-funded project; purchased services
contracted for performance under the grant; travel of employees
working directly on a grant-funded project; materials, supplies, and
equipment purchased for use on a specific grant; and infrastructure
costs directly attributable to the program {such as long distance
telephone calls specific to the program, etc.}.

Indirect costs are those that have been incurred for a common or
joint purpose benefitting more than one cost objective, and not
readily assignable to the cost objectives specifically benefitted,
without effort disproportionate to the results achieved. Costs
incurred for the same purpose in like circumstances shall be treated
consistently as either direct or indirect costs.

These costs may include: general data processing, human resources,
utility costs, maintenance, accounting, etc.

Federal education programs with supplement not supplant
provisions must use a restricted indirect cost rate. In a restricted
rate, indirect costs are limited to genecral management costs.
General management costs do not include divisional administration
that is limited to one component of the District, the governing body
of the District, compensation of the Superintendent, compensation
of the chief executive officer of any component of the District, and
operation of the immediate offices of these officers.




3X EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6114 /page 6 of 8

The salaries of administrative and clerical staff should normally be
treated as indirect costs. Direct charging of these costs may be
appropriate only if all of the following conditions are met:

1. Administrative or clerical services are integral to a project or
activity. '

Individuals involved can be specifically identified with the
project or activity.

Such costs are explicitly included in the budget or have the
prior written approval of the Federal awarding agency.

4, The costs are not also recovered as indirect costs.
Where a Federal program has a specific cap on the percentage of administrative

costs that may be charged to a grant, that cap shall include all direct administrative
charges as well as any recovered indirect charges.

Effort should be given to identify costs as direct costs whenever practical, but
allocation of indirect costs may be used where not prohibited and where indirect
cost allocation is approved ahead of time by the Michigan Department of Education
(MDE) or the pass-through entity (Federal funds subject to 2 C.F.R. Part 200
pertaining to determining indirect cost allocation). :




U EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6114 /page 7 of 8

Timely Obligation of Funds

Obligations are orders placed for property and services, contracts and subawards
made, and similar transactions during a given period that require payment by the
non-Federal entity during the same or a future period.

The following list illustrates when funds are determined to be obligated under the
U.S. Department of Education ("USDOE") regulations:

If the obligation is for:

A, Acquisition of property - on the date which the District makes a
binding written commitment to acquire the property.

Personal services by an employee of the District - when the services
are performed.

Personal services by a contractor who is not an employee of the
District - on the date which the District makes a binding written
commitment to obtain the services.

Public utility services - when the District receives the services.

Travel - when the travel is taken,

Rental of property - when the District uses the property.

A pre-agreement cost that was properly approved by the Secretary
(USDOE) under the cost principles in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart E -
Cost Principles - on the first day of the project period.




ﬂ ECLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6114/page 8 of 8

Period of Performance

All obligations must occur on or between the beginning and ending dates of the
grant project. This period of time is known as the period of performance. The period
of performance is dictated by statute and will be indicated in the grant award
notification ("GAN"). As a general rule, State-administered Federal funds are
available for obligation within the year that Congress appropriates the funds for.
However, given the unique nature of educational institutions, for many Federal
education grants, the period of performance is twenty-seven (27) months. This
maximum period includes a fifteen (15) month period of initial availability, plus a
twelve (12} month period for carryover. For direct grants, the period of performance
is generally identified in the GAN.

In the case of a State-administered grant, obligations under a grant may not be
made until the grant funding period begins or all necessary materials are submitted

to the granting agency, whichever is later. In the case of a direct grant, obligations
may begin when the grant is, unless an agreement exists with MDE or the pass-
through entity to reimburse for pre-approval expenses.

For both State-administered and direct grants, regardless of the period of
availability, the District shall liquidate all obligations incurred under the award not
later than ninety (90) days after the end of the funding period unless an extension is
authorized. Any funds not obligated within the period of performance or liquidated
within the appropriate timeframe are said to lapse and shall be returned to the
awarding agency. Consequently, the District shall closely monitor grant spending
throughout the grant cycle.

2 C.F.R. 200.403-.406, 200.413(a)-(c), 200.430(a), 200.431{a), 200.458
2 C.F.R 200.474(b)

© NEoLA 2016




E EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6116/page 1 of 3

NEW POLICY - VOL. 30, NO. 2

TIME AND EFFORT REPORTING

As a recipient of Federal funds, the District shall comply with the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards. Section 200.430 of the Code of Federal Regulations requires certification of
effort to document salary expenses charged directly or indirectly against
Federally-sponsored projects. This process is intended to verify that compensation for
employment services, including salaries and wages, is allocable and properly
expended, and that any variances from the budget are reconciled.

Compensation for employment services includes all remuneration, paid currently or
accrued, for services of employees rendered during the period of performance under
the Federal award, including but not necessarily limited to wages and salaries.
Compensation for personal services may also include fringe benefits, which are

addressed in 2 C.F.R. 200.431 Compensation—fringe benefits. Costs of compensation
are allowable to the extent that they satisfy the specific requirements of these
regulations, and that the total compensation for individual employees:

A. is reasonable for the services rendered, conforms to the District’s
established written policy, and is consistently applied to both Federal
and non-Federal activities; and

follows an appointment made in accordance with the District’s
written policies and meets the requirements of Federal statute, where
applicable.

Time and Effort Reports

The reports:

A. are supported by a system of internal controls which provide
reasonable assurance that the charges are accurate, allowable, and
properly allocated;

are incorporated into the official records of the District;




E EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6116/page 2 of 3

reasonably reflect the total activity for which the employee is

compensated by the District, not exceeding 100% of the compensated
activities;

encompass both Federally assisted and other activities compensated
by the District on an integrated basis;

comply with the District’s established accounting policies and
practices;

support the distribution of the employee’s salary or wages among
specific activities or cost objectives if the employee works on more
than one (1) Federal award, a Federal award and non-Federal award,
an indirect cost activity and a direct cost activity, two or more indirect
activities which are allocated using different allocation bases, or an
unallowable activity and a direct or indirect cost activity. '

The District will also follow any time and effort requirements imposed by the
pass-through entity to the extent that they are more restrictive than the Federal
requirements. The Payroll Office is responsible for the distribution, collection, and

retention of all employee effort reports. Individually reported data will be made
available only to authorized auditors.

Reconciliations

Budget estimates are not used as support for charges to Federal awards. However,
the District may use budget estimates for interim accounting purposes. The system
used by the District to establish budget estimates produces reasonable
approximations of the activity actually performed. Any significant changes in the
corresponding work activity are identified by the District and entered into the
District’s records in a timely manner.




Ei EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6116/page 3 of 3

The District’s internal controls include a process to review after-the-fact interim
charges made to a Federal award based on budget estimates and ensure that all
necessary adjustments are made so that the final amount charged to the Federal
award is accurate, allowable, and properly allocated.

Applicable Laws, Regulations, and Guidance:
2 C.F.R. 200.430, 200.431

© NeEoLaA 2016




3 EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6325 /page 1 of 10

NEW POLICY - VOL. 30, NO. 2

PROCUREMENT - FEDERAL GRANTS /FUNDS

Procurement of all supplies, materials, equipment, and services paid for from
Federal funds or District matching funds shall be made in accordance with all
applicable Federal, State, and local statutes and/or regulations, the terms and
conditions of the Federal grant, Board of Education policies, and administrative
procedures.

The Superintendent shall maintain a procurement and contract administration
system in accordance with the USDOE requirements (2 CFR 200.317-.326) for the
administration and management of Federal grants and Federally-funded programs.
The District shall maintain a contract administration system that requires
contractors to perform in accordance with the terms, conditions, and specifications
of their contracts or purchase orders. Except as otherwise noted, procurement
transactions shall conform to the provisions of the District’s documented general
purchasing Policy 6320 and AG 6320.

All District employees, officers, and agents who have purchasing authority shall
abide by the standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest and governing the
actions of its employees, officers, and agents engaged in the selection, award, and
administration of contracts as established in Policy 1130, Policy 3110 and
Policy 4110 - Conflict of Interest, '

The District will avoid acquisition of unnecessary or duplicative items. Additionally,
consideration shall be given to consolidating or breaking out procurements to obtain
a more economical purchase. And, where appropriate, an analysis shall be made of
lease versus purchase alternatives, and any other appropriate analysis to determine
the most economical approach. These considerations are given as part of the
process to determine the allowability of each purchase made with Federal funds.

To foster greater economy and efficiency, the District may enter into State and local

intergovernmental agreements where appropriate for procurement or use of common
or shared goods and services.




E EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
: SCHOOL DISTRICT 6325/page 2 of 10

Competition

All procurement transactions shall be conducted in a manner that encourages full
and open competition and that is in accordance with good administrative practice
and sound business judgement. In order to promote objective contractor
performance and eliminate unfair competitive advantage, the District shall exclude
any conftractor that has developed or drafted specifications, requirements,
statements of work, or invitations for bids or requests for proposals from
competition for such procurements.

Some of the situations considered to be restrictive of competition include, but are
not limited to, the following:

Al unreasonable requirements on firms in order for them to qualify to
do business;

unnecessary experience and excessive bonding requirements;

noncompetitive contracts to consultants that are on retainer
contracts; :

organizational conflicts of interest,;

specification of only a “brand name” product instead of allowing for
an “or equal’ product to be offered and describing the performance
or other relevant requirements of the procurement; and

F. any arbitrary action in the procurement process.

Further, the District does not use statutorily or administratively imposed State,
local, or tribal geographical preferences in the evaluation of bids or proposals,
unless (1) an applicable Federal statute expressly mandates or encourages a
geographic preference; or (2) the District is contracting for architectural and
engineering services, in which case geographic location may be a selection criterion
provided its application leaves an appropriate number of qualified firms, given the
nature and size of the project, to compete for the contract.




E EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6325,/ page 3 of 10

To the extent that the District uses a pre-qualified list of persons, firms or products
to acquire goods and services, the pre-qualified list includes enough qualified
sources as to ensure maximum open and free competition. The District allows
vendors to apply for consideration to be placed on the list : [insert
frequency. see Drafting Note].

[Drafting Note: The District shall allow vendors not on the pre-qualified list to
apply for placement on the list periodically. The District may determine how

frequently the pre-qualified list becomes open for new vendors or whether it is
open continuously.]

Solicitation Language

The District shall require that all solicitations incorporate a clear and accurate
description of the technical requirements for the material, product, or service to be
procured. Such description shall not, in competitive procurements, contain features
which unduly restrict competition. The description may include a statement of the
qualitative nature of the material, product or service to be procured and, when
necessary, shall set forth those minimum essential characteristics and standards to
which it shall conform if it is to satisfy its intended use. Detailed product
specifications should be avoided if at all possible.

When it is impractical or uneconomical to make a clear and accurate description of
the technical requirements, a “brand name or equivalent” description may be used
as a means to define the performance or other salient requirements of procurement.
The specific features of the named brand which shall be met by offers shall be
clearly stated; and identify all requirements which the offerors shall fulfill and all
other factors to be used in evaluating bids or proposals.




E EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES

SCHOOL DISTRICT 6325/page 4 of 10

The Board will not approve any expenditure for an unauthorized purchase or

contract.

Procurement Methods

The District shall utilize the following methods of procurement:

0

Micro-purchases

Procurement by micropurchase is the acquisition of supplies or
services, the aggregate dollar amount of which does not exceed
3 {not to exceed $3,500). To the extent practicable, the
District shall distribute micro-purchases equitably among qualified
suppliers. Micro-purchases may be made without soliciting
competitive quotations if Superintendent considers the price to be
reasonable. The District maintains evidence of this reasonableness
in the records of all purchases made by this method.

Small Purchases

Small purchase procedures provide for relatively simple and
informal procurement methods for securing services, supplies, and
other property that does not exceed the competitive bid threshold of
Small purchase procedures require that
price or rate quotations shall be obtained from ( ) {} an
adequate number of qualified sources.




H EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6325/page 5 of 10

Sealed Bids

Sealed, competitive bids shall be obtained when the purchase of,
and contract for, single items of supplies, materials, or equipment
which amounts to the amount allowed by Michigan statute and
when the Board determines to build, repair, enlarge, improve, or
demolish a school building/facility the cost of which will exceed the
amount allowed by Michigan statute.

In order for sealed bidding to be feasible, the following conditions
shall be present:

1. a complete, adequate, and realistic specification or purchase
description is available;

two (2) or more responsible bidders are willing and able to .
compete effectively for the business; and

the procurement lends itself to a firm fixed price contract and
the selection of the successful bidder can be made principally
on the basis of price.

When sealed bids are used, the following requirements apply:

1. Bids shall be solicited in accordance with the provisions of
State law and Policy 6320. Bids shall be solicited from
() { ) an adequate number of qualified suppliers,
providing sufficient response time prior to the date set for the
opening of bids. The invitation to bid shali be publicly
advertised.

2. The invitation for bids will include product/contract
specifications and pertinent attachments and shall define the .
items and/or services required in order for the bidder to

properly respond.

All bids will be opened at the time and place prescribed in the
invitation for bids; bids will be opened publicly.



E EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6325/page 6 of 10

A firm fixed price contract award will be made in writing to
the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. Where
specified in bidding documents, factors such as discounts,
transportation cost, and life cycle costs shall be considered in
determining which bid is lowest. Payment discounts may
only be used to determine the low bid when prior experience
indicates that such discounts are usually taken.

The Board reserves the right to reject any or all bids for
sound documented reason.

() Competitive Proposals

Procurement by competitive proposal, normally conducted with
more than one source submitting an offer, is generally used when
conditions are not appropriate for the use of sealed bids or in the
case of a recognized exception to the sealed bid method. [Drafting
Note: Like sealed bids, Federal law does mnot require a
competitive proposal wunless the procurement is for over
$150,000. The State/District may set a lower threshold for
sealed bids and competitive proposals. Michigan law stipulates
a threshold for which sealed bids are required.
(See Policy 6320.)]

If this method is used, the following requirements apply:

1. Requests for proposals shall be publicized and identify all
evaluation factors and their relative importance. Any
response to the publicized requests for proposals shall be
considered to the maximum extent practical.

Proposals shall be solicited from an ( ) ( ) adequate
number of sources.

The District shall use its written method for conducting
technical evaluations of the proposals received and for
selecting recipients.




E EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6325/page 7 of 10

Contracts shall be awarded to the responsible firm whose
proposal is most advantageous to the program, with price and
other factors considered.

The District may use competitive proposal procedures for
qualifications-based procurement of architectural/engineering (A/E)
professional services whereby competitors' qualifications are
evaluated and the most qualified competitor is selected, subject to
negotiation of fair and reasonable compensation. The method, where
price is not used as a selection factor, can only be used in
procurement of A/E professional services. It cannot be used to

. purchase other types of services though A/E that firms are a
potential source to perform the proposed effort.

Noncompetitive Proposals

Procurement by noncompetitive proposals allows for solicitation of a
proposal from only one source and may be used only when one or
more of the following circumstances apply:

1. the item is available only from a single source

2. the public exigency or emergency for the requirement will not
permit a delay resulting from competitive solicitation

the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity expressly
authorizes noncompetitive proposals in response to a written
request from the District

after solicitation of a aumber of sources, competition is
determined to be inadequate




E ECLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6325 /page 8 of 10

Contract/Price Analysis

The District shall perform a cost or price analysis in connection with every
procurement action in excess of $150,000, including contract modifications. A cost
analysis generally means evaluating the separate cost elements that make up the
total price, while a price analysis means evaluating the total price, without looking
at the individual cost elements.

The method and degree of analysis is dependent on the facts surrounding the
particular procurement situation; however, the District shall come to an
independent estimate prior to receiving bids or proposals.

When performing a cost analysis, the District shall negotiate profit as a separate
element of the price. To establish a fair and reasonable profit, consideration is given
to the complexity of the work to be performed, the risk borne by the contractor, the
contractor’s investment, the amount of subcontracting, the quality of its record of
past performance, and industry profit rates in the surrounding geographical area for
similar work.

Time and Materials Coniracts

The District uses a time and materials type contract only (1) after a determination
that no other contract is suitable; and (2) if the contract includes a ceiling price that
the contractor exceeds at its own risk. Time and materials type contract means a
contract whose cost to the District is the sum of the actual costs of materials, and
direct labor hours charged at fixed hourly rates that reflect wages, general and
administrative expenses, and profit.

Since this formula generates an open-ended contract price, a time-and-materials
contract provides no positive profit incentive to the contractor for cost control or
labor efficiency. Therefore, the District sets a ceiling price for each contract that the
contractor exceeds at its own risk. Further, the District shall assert a high degree of
oversight in order to obtain reasonable assurance that the contractor is using
efficient methods and effective cost controls.



E EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6325/page 9 of 10

Suspension and Debarment

The District will award contracts only to responsible contractors possessing the
ability to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of the proposed
procurement. All purchasing decisions shall be made in the best interests of the
District and shall seek to obtain the maximum value for each dollar expended.
When making a purchasing decision, the District shall consider such factors as
(1) contractor integrity; (2) compliance with public policy; (3) record of past
performance; and (4) financial and technical resources.

The Superintendent shall have the authority to suspend or debar a
person/corporation, for cause, from consideration or award of further contracts.
‘The District is subject to and shall abide by the nonprocurement debarment and

suspension regulations implementing Executive Orders 12549 and 12689,
2 CFR Part 180.

Suspension is an action taken by the District that immediately prohibits a person
from participating in covered transactions and transactions covered under the
Federal Acquisition Regulation (48 CFR chapter 1) for a temporary period, pending
completion of an agency investigation and any judicial or administrative proceedings
that may ensue. A person so excluded is suspended. (2 CFR Part 180 Subpart G)

Debarment is an action taken by the Superintendent to exclude a person from
participating in covered transactions and transactions covered under the Federal

Acquisition Regulation (48 CFR chapter 1). A person so excluded is debarred.
(2 CFR Part 180 Subpart H) '

The District shall not subcontract with or award subgrants to any person or
company who is debarred or suspended. For contracts over $25,000, the District
shall confirm that the vendor is not debarred or suspended by either checking the
Federal government’s System for Award Management, which maintains a list of such
debarred or suspended vendors at www.sam.gov; collecting a certification from the

vendor; or adding a clause or condition to the covered transaction with that vendor.
(2 CFR Part 180 Subpazrt C)




| EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6325 /page 10 of 10

Bid Protest

The District maintains the following protest procedures to handle and resolve
disputes relating to procurements and, in all instances, discloses information
regarding the protest to the awarding agency.

A bidder who wishes to file a bid protest shall file such notice and follow procedures
prescribed by the Request For Proposals (RFPs) or the individual bid specifications
package, for resolution. Bid protests shall be filed in writing with the
Superintendent within seventy-two (72) hours of the opening of the bids in protest.

Within five (5) days of receipt of a protest, the Superintendent shall review the
protest as submitted and render a decision regarding the merits of the protest and
any impact on the acceptance and rejection of bids submitted. Notice of the filing of
a bid protest shall be communicated to the Board and shall be so noted in any
_subsequent recommendation for the acceptance of bids and awarding of contracts.

Failure to file a notice of intent to protest, or failure to file a formal written protest
within the time prescnbed shall constitute a waiver of proceedings.

Maintenance of Procurement Records

The District maintains records sufficient to detail the history of all procurements.
These records will include, but are not necessarily limited to the following: rationale
for the method of procurement, selection of contract type, contractor selection or
rejection, and the basis for the contract price (including a cost or price analysis).

Applicable laws and regulations:
2 C.F.R. 200.317 - .326

© NeEoLA 2016




ﬂ EOLA of MICHIGAN

LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCES
SCHOOL DISTRICT 6550 /page 1 of 2

REVISED POLICY - VOL. 30, NO, 2

TRAVEL PAYMENT & REIMBURSEMENT

Travel expenses incurred for official business travel on behalf of the Board of
Education shall be limited to those expenses reasonably and necessarily incurred by
the employee in the performance of a public purpose authorized, in advance, in
accordance with administrative guidelines.

Payment and reimbursement rates for per diem meals, lodging, and mileage shall be
approved by the Board annually. The Board shall establish mileage rates ( ) in
accordance with { ) not exceeding the Federal IRS prescribed mileage rate,

Employees are expected to exercise the same care incurring travel expenses that a
prudent person would exercise if traveling on personal business and expending
personal funds. Unauthorized costs and additional expenses incurred for personal
preference or convenience will not be reimbursed.

Unauthorized expenses include but are not limited to alcohol, movies, fines for
traffic viclations, and the entertainment/meals/lodging of spouses or guests.

i1 Commercial airfare costs in excess of the basic least expensive
unrestricted accommodations class offered by commercial airlines are
unallowable except when such accommodations would (1} require
circuitous routing; (2) require travel during wunreasonable hours;
(3) excessively prolong travel; (4) result in additional costs that would
offset the transportation savings; or (5) offer accommodations not
reasonably adequate for the traveler’s medical needs. Instances of
commercial airfare cost in excess of the basic least expensive
unrestricted accommodations class must be justified and documented
on a case-by-case basis.




DA EOLA of MICHIGAN
LOCAL TEMPLATES

BOARD OF EDUCATION . FINANCES
: SCHOOCL DISTRICT 6550/page 2 of 2

Temporary dependent care costs (as dependent is defined in
26 U.S.C. 152) above and beyond regular dependent care that directly
results from travel to conferences are allowable provided that (1) the
costs are a direct result of the individuai’s travel for the Federal
award; (2) the costs are consistent with the District’s documented
administrative guidelines for all entity travel; and (3) are only
temporary during the travel period. Travel costs for dependents are
unallowable, except for travel of a duration of six (6} months or more
with prior approval of the Federal awarding agency.

Travel payment and reimbursement provided from Federal funds must be authorized
in advance and must be reasonable and consistent with the District’s travel policy
and administrative guidelines, For travel paid for with Federal funds, the travel
authorization must include documentation that demonstrates that (1) the
participation in the event by the individual traveling is necessary to the
Federal award; and (2) the costs are reasonable and consistent with the
District’s travel policy.

Al travel shall comply with the travel procedures and rates established in the
administrative guidelines. All costs incurred with Federal funds must meet the
cost allowability standards within Board Policy 6114.

To the extent that the District’s policy does not establish the allowability of a
particular type of travel cost, the rates and amounts established under
5 U.S.C. 5701-11, (“Travel and Subsistence Expenses; Mileage Allowances”), or
by the Administrator of General Services, or by the President (or his/her
designee), must apply to travel under Federal awards.

2 C.F.R. 200474

© NEoLA 2016







“(g) uwinoa Ul pesn aye: ofejw au) pul of aseym BuipieBe: 7 afed uo suoponygsul eeg | | NY.LEOdIA
"6 LWINpoo w epea ey usly sefief 1ou Ing

ueuBiqg uay
awep Jui

d

g1 BYO [Me 1o
9 [eUOSIBY [BIDIBWLICT) 104
) 91-9¢-6
1] 12U0s.19- ajeq
[BlISNpU] puE jsai0- helent By
=70} K= 2y edio 10
palient "eouapissy [edioulgd 104 a1-92°6
- (ATNO J9dQ HN pu® aleq

15810407 "y BHY

EITEINRH

d

ajes xey aseg ot uewy Jofie; si yam Aas) Bupeiado ug Budae) of sold JOUT G JSNW BFZLLE TOW 0 SJUeLISNDAL 8lfl "G UIRI0D Ui pemolje die
POZLOINE WNLIXEW St} PIBIXE JOU JliM yalum ojes & Araf o) apmap Aew Apoq Supusacl SUl Bpg | 1Z U0RISS TOW UOREXE] UT YILL J8PUT

Juepisald E
ameuBig| uosiedizyn D
Aesioeg E
sineubis Halo D

ddng/HM) pone 99 o) sajey

} ‘peonpad L3 0s|8
uasq aABY SelB) Aas) Xe] pDejsanbei esey) 18l Alliso am

(e)LLzLose

‘sBe|yn {ssajuLeH DioH) [Bjuswalddng B AAS] UaIyM SLSID [00USS TYDOT 104 ‘PUB $ELLE 9% L L2 SUSHIas oW Ll Aldwad o} *Asessadsl
oAB seje) Anaf pasonbal ayy 1eus pue ‘(1§ Uoloag ‘6 8loiHY) UCHMIISUOD S1e)SoL UM Aldwon 01 Aiessssu )| ‘paonpel
‘9ADGE PRLEL JUN JuaLLiench 1800| sU) Jo) seaeuesaldal aul sy INQILYDIAILYID

91-92-6 suonriadQ g ssaulsng 4o 10)23q LO0SX Potr-6vr-vel uebuay asjuag
itclg] Jaladeld Jo sjiy, Jaquiny sucydsia) Aqg paiedald
8202-2Z1 00950 0 VN © 0000°L ¥N 0000°1 VN VYN | 9isig 1980 91| psopa
1202-2) 000€°§ 0 VN 0000} VN 0000°L WN VN | 91226 198 9GS, | psronx
9202Z-Z1 A 0 vN 0000°% VN 0000°1 VN VN | 9rzzd 1090 VS| poopxs
££02-21 000£°0 0 YN 0000} VN 0000°1 ¥N VN | zvzze 199 ZL.|peopsa
8202-Z1 0002'2 0 ¥N 0000'} ¥N 0000°L ¥N YN | L0602t 198 L0, | peronxa
L102-Ch 005€°0 0 YN 0000’ VN 0000°L ¥N YN | ro-ri-zi 1990 Y0, | paronxg
9z0Z-21 £69¥°0 0 LLP6™L 0000°L LLPE'L 066670 06F6"}L 0000°2 | L0-22-20 23IPBIH | unpooa
920Z-21 L0ES L1 0 L0gSLL 0000°} L0851 066670 ¢8YS AL | 0000°8L | Lo-iz-<0 HN-~8dO| paloA
pezuouwny | | 'os¢ipaaa || AN paneT eq | . AneT eBeIlA UonoBl 4 J93[PesH,, uonoeld L20|PEIH, 018 Jaueyn | uonrs|g abejn 89In0S
sBey |99 0y papsenhay | o} pajsanbey BJqEMO[Y yoeqgIIoY abel PreLLE uononpsy sbeqiy pre’LLe uoclieela | Jo 8jeq Jo gsoding (1}
jo ajeq abeliy abe(iN LWNWIXe ucyezijenbs 10N Aq psonpey | ,88IPESH, JB3A | TOIN AQ peanpay | Aq pazuouiny  (€) &
uonedxg (L) (a1} {6) 1o Buissassy Ul | AjusuBwiad ojey | juelngd 910z | Ajusueulied e1ey abeiin
(ZL) yindp wmm _‘v_.m '09g mmm_u_ﬁﬁvm_.om {9) mmm_E\N_ W_\om _m:ﬁ_mv_ho
m ...H ¥ m ._\-

104 Xe3 9102 2} uo AAs| J0] pazjioine
usq anel SaleJ Xe} Buimofjo) sy L "6l 171 1g 295 "TOW Jepun papiacad si Bur-uou Joj Aj[eudy paial] st xe) Aledasd g yolym 4oy JUBWIUISAOH J0 J1un Y28 Jo) pajajdilod 3 JSnL WIo] SIYL

18Z¥80°S.

‘sayladold [puosia ] [ejo1aLwos pus |euosia
|Bisnpul Y32.04 peenty 'eanincuBy peylenD ‘eauspisey fediould Buipnjoxe anjeA SIGEXE] 910Z 1519|1510 ICOUSS D040

ST00HIS 217dNd IMVT IUONLIHM

fneT oBe Sunsenbay] Jun JUSILLIBACD) 18007

" €51°982's¥T
91-62-G Jo 52 Jun au u) sepedald 1 J0 9NleA SqEXeL 9107

MYNILHSYA

59X, SIAST JIUf] JUSWLIRADS JB00T By} Sieups (s81Aunog

*z abed uo suonangsu; ay) pedl Ajjnjates)

62011

31910 A119 40 diysumoy Yoes :OL AdQD
{(shuswedsq uchezienbd (0L AdCO
(s)sE0 AUNoD 1OL TYNIDIHO

*seqdde Aieuod Alcjepusw: 8 BUllld “IYE'L1Z PUB HE'3 L2 '9527| LT SUCHIRS TOW JO AHoLne 1apun penss| st L) syl
SHINOISSINWOD 0 AHYOE ALNNOD OL LHOd3Y 1SINDTH IOVTIIN

(9107 ‘0% +oqwisjdag alojeq 1o Lo papwgns pue pajsjdwon aq ysnw uuoy siuy) 3sanbay o)ey Xel 910z

(91-p0 "Aa¥) ¥1.9
Anseel] 0 uswiiedeq ueBiyoly



*(g) uwnjoa u; pasn sjel abeliw auy puy o eym BuipieBel g abed uo suoparsul 993 1] NY LU OJINT ««
"B UiUnfoa u 818l sy} ueyy Jelfiet Jou ing

ddng/HH) pelaeT oq 0] sajey
Bupeiad 1S (000G (Sj0L

JuspIsald H

uosladieyn D

Aieai00g H

Ja 2 10
8l o I o4 1B XB) 8584 Sy UaLy faBIe) 8f yorym Ang Bugesede ue Buifae) op Joud jau oq 1snil 8pg LLE TON #O sjuBLUBgRDE! SUf) "8 UWNICD Ul PAMCfe 8jal
g . PAZIIOWINE WMLUIXBLW 4] PaaoXe JoU [fim yolum ejel e £as] of apisap Aell Apoq BUienol ey "apz"| | g HOMIaS TN "UOHEXEL Ui YANLL JOPUf) «
{BuQslad [gl2Jswwio] plsF] @ _‘lmN..m ﬁmcm_ﬂ Cmv‘m
0 {euasagd seQ BwEN Wid aineufls
[BLsNRUL PUE 159J04 payient By
pauend ‘aouspisey |BdiSullyd J0- 91-97-6 1sal0de "y ey
a1ey (ATNQ t2dQ HN pue ajeq SLuEN IHd aineufls

wag [ ]

{ehriziogs

afel (ssefuieH plon) [EUswaddng B Ara] Yoium SIOLSIp [ooUas Ty0T 104 ‘pUe FELLE '2¥g | L2 SUORIag TN LM Alduwioa o) ‘Alessaosu
1 ‘peonps. Usad os|E SABY SOJE] AAS] pajsanbal ey 1ay} pue (L¢ Uohoes ‘g B0NJYy) UORMIISUCD S1EISaY) UM Aldwios o] Alesseosl il ‘pasnpai
UD0gG BABY SEIB) AAS] X} pajsenbal 958y 1By} AS0 aMm 'SADGE PIWEU JIun JUaWILIBA0R [220f 8y} Jof ssAEjussaldsl By} Y I NQLLY I LYFD

91926
ayeq Iatedaid Jo aj1 Jaquiny suoydaje ] Aq paredalg
£202-ZL §165°0 0| 61650 0000'} 1650 L5660 1009°0 |  0029°0 | £0-60-90 AL 294! peropcss
pazuolmy | L 09 pelneT | L AInp paiaeT 89| . AneT aba(li uanoeld L88IPEsH, uopoRId 2B[PESH, 0@ \leyByD | uonos)g abe( 80inog
abepw g o) pajsanhay | Of polsSNbaY a|qemolly soeqlod abeln preLie uolonpay afely pye’lle uofos|d Ja 818 40 ssading (1)
j0 9jeq abeiy abeliy LU uopazifenad 10 Aq peanpay | ,88IPESH, JBRA | O AG peonpey |Aq pezliotiny| (€] @
uchendys {11) (oL {6) 1o Buissessy Ul | Ajusuellsd eley | jusunD 9L0Z | Apususulag sy afajin
4 UL +€°}1Z 998 sBeliN 9102 (9 abzlly G102 JeuIBug
(@ 03] e (G)
1ok Xe} 9L0Z Y1 U AAs] 1o} paziiowne

uzaq aaey sejed xe) BUimoljos oUL "GLL"LLZ 998 1D Japun papiacad s Buny-uou 1o} Ajjeuad ‘pataaf 81 xey Auodosd e yarym Jo} JUSIUIBA0E 1O JIUN OB 10] PSI9jdWod 3 JSNW WHOS SIUL

Lez'yeo’ss

sajIedald [BUOSIS ] [Ei9)ewiWos puUB [BUCSISd
felIsnpY ‘188104 palleny ‘eanknouBy peent ‘@aepisax ledisuld Buipnjoxe anjeA alqexal, 91.0Z :s3osi( [00Yas Tvo 0T 404

STTO0HDS 2119nd IMVT IHOWLIHM
AngT aboeyy Busenbey JUr] IUSLWLIBAGD) [2307]

£51'982'svZ
gY-£7-5 10 SE P 8U) Bj Sajuadoid TV 4O onlen SIgEXe], BLOZ

MVYNILHSYM

SOXE | SEIAST LU JUSLLIBAGE) 2207 8yl alayaa (89))Aunon

-z abed uo suoyRoNSUI aY] peal Ajjnjesed

62071

e Ao 4o disumo) 4oes 1oL AJOD
(shusunuedag vonezilenb3 0L AJOD
(910 Auned (0L TYNIDRIO

‘sojdde Asusag iojepuew & Buglld "pye’l Lz PUE $£7LLZ '8p2"LLZ SUONISS TOW Jo Ajuoyine Jeiiin fransst S| U} it
SHINCISSINNGD 40 QYYCH ALNNCO OL LH0d3Y 1$3N0IY IADVTIIN
{9107 ‘0¢ Jaqweydeg 210 JO U0 PAPGNS PUER POJSILWOD ag JSNW WO} SIYL) u_w&:UmN_ ajey xel 9102

(910 "AoY) LG
Ansesy) jousLiedag ueBiyoy



«(g) UWINO2 L} pesn a1es abe|iw au) puy o) s1eym Buipieber z ebed uo suononnsul 885 1 I NV LMOCIA

-6 LLUNOD Uf Bl 8y} uey} Jebref Jou g

13 B o4
8l Hol ages XB] 85BY oy UBY) JsAIB] S yarum fns) Buneisdo e BUIAAS] 0] Joud Jolu &G JSNLL 8pZ"LLE TOI 4O SjuBIISLNDE] 8L "6 ULNJOD LI IO/ S1al
9 POZUOLNTE WINWIXEW BY] PAASXa Jou fiith YoIUM 878l e Arg] Of 8ploap Aew Apog BuaAch ayj ‘9z’ g LORISS TOW ‘wopexel W tini Ispif) .
fe} Jo
[BUOSIBC| |BIISLEILLIOD 04 31-92-6 ueuBiq uay Juspisald E
"9 |BLCSIS aeq allEN g aimeubls] uesladipuo _H_
[BlSNpU| pUe 88104 pallend By
pailenyy ‘oouep|say jedioupd Jod 91-97-6 18010-87 Y By fieieioag H
ey (ATNG JedQ HN pue a1eg sureN ULd aImeubis WD D
ddng/HH) pelneT eq o) sy i
Bugeiado 1011SIQ jooUdS [BloL gtz oee
‘aBeq (S38UleH ploM) [BUsweddng & Are] yollm SIDLISIP [004Ds Y00 Jot ‘pue $g LLE ‘9rZ L LE SUoRI9S TTOIN UM Aduugo 0] ‘Alessaosu

4]

fy3 Augajdwoguo; sUCIIONRSUL:
Bejiti:

1i 'paonpal Ueag os(e ansy sejal As)| palsenbsad ay) el pue N

L& UONag ‘6 2lfly) uonnisues ajelsaL Uim Aidwos aj Alessanaul Jf ‘paonpal
n JustLLLIBA0B [BO0} 81 o} sealellasaldal al sy INOLLY OISO

1D 3% 3013810 00U DE (290 useq aney sajel Ang] xe) palsanbal 958Y) jeUl AHHS0 am 'aA0ge pRLUBL U
9}-92-6 suoneadQ *g ssauisng jo 1039311G 100SX vovri-6Pi-rEL ueBley aspuaq
ayeg Jaedsid Jo s L Jeyuuny aucyde@l fq pazedald
gZ0e-Tl 009570 1] YN 000074 VN 0000°) ¥N YN | 9161-€ 199 91, | paonxa
1202-2} 000€'S 0 YN 0000°1 YN 0000} VN VN | 9226 1980 S| peroaxa
9z02-2t ooveo 0 YN 00007} YN 0000’1 YN VN | 9228 1090 VS L. peopxa
£e02-ZL Q00g°0 0] VN Qooo’L YN 0000°L ¥N YN | zZi2es 198Q 21| peropxz
gz0zZcl 00022 0 WN 00001 YN 0000°}) YN YN | £0-50-Z) 1980 L0\ | peropxg
LLOZTL 00620 0 YN 00001 YN 0000° L YN YN | #¥0-¥1-21 192G 0. | paoaxa
920Z-Z) £69%°0 0 Liv6'L 0000°L LIVE'L 066670 06F6'L | 0000°Z | 204220  98|PESH | yuperon
azoz-Zl L0ESLL 0 L0€5°LL 0000°} L0eG L1 0666°0 e8ball 0000°81 | L0-L2-20 IZ.._m.QO pP210A
paziouny | | seq pepe |1 Ainp peme a4 | . Aaa abEjIN uonsel ,O2IPE3H, ucRoRl- LOo|pEsH, ‘0ja ‘ISUBeYT | UOIoRig abe|n 20Inog
abe|A aq oy pelsanbey | Ol pejsenbsy algemolly yaeq|oy kel preLle uoganpay oBely preLle uopasia | e eleg o asodind (1}
jo8ieq abe||iy abemn uwinu ey uoljezenby o Ag peonpayl | BeipesH. lea | O Ad pashpey |Ag pazuouiny|  (g) (@)
uoneidxs {11 (oL (8) 1o Buisssssy U] | Ajusuelulad ey |  jusund 9108 ARusLELWIB BlEY abepy
e4, wndl. ,vmﬁ. w& 093 mmm__.”ﬁzvm 10z (9) mmm___qm WEN _mcﬁ_mv_ho
2 L 22 \G. N ¥,

uaaq aABy sojed xe} Bulmoljo) oyL ‘614

z 998 10 opun papiaoad si BuliFuou Jof A3eusd "patas| s1xe} Auodoad B yaiym o} juatawaA0B 10 Jiun Yaea Jof peleidiion og 3N LWIo) SiUL

"|104 XE} 91.0Z 91 UO AAS] Joi paziiouine

zig'agl'se

- ‘sapiatold [BUOSIad [BIOBWDY PUE [euosiad
{ELISNpU| 159404 paiienD) 'enpnouBy paylfeny) 'uLpsay {edioupd Buipnjoxe anfeA 2|qexel $102 SIoMslg 1ocUds T¥D01 403

ST100HOS J11dnd IV JHONLIHM

Ao abey Bunsenbey Jun JUSWUIRADS [BDOT]

¥9¥'500°88
9L-£2-G 40 SR UUN 8L Uy seladold TV 0 @NlEA S|qEXEL 9103

NOLSONIAIN

soxE] S9IAGT UL JUSWILIBACS) 1007 8yl alaups (Sal}iunon

-z abed uo suononnsu] sy} peal Anjalen

yep Ao Jo diysumo) Yse3 10l AdCD
(shusuedaq uopez|enb3 :0L AJOD
(s)1si0 AUNOD 1O L TYNISIHO

62071

“so|[dde AHeusd ‘AIGIBPUBLY St BUIll: "PYE’LLZ PUB PE'LLE 9V k12 SUOIRRS TOIN 0 RUOLINE Splih DINSS] & LLO SHL
SHYIANOISSINNGD 40 QYYOd ALNNOD OL LHOd3d LSZNDIH AOVTIIN

{910z ‘0 Jequardes 010)9( 10 UO paRIWgns pue palaidlod ag ysnw wioj s 1) 1s9n U@N_ ayey

xel 9102

{ab-p0 "A2Yd) 1.8
fanseau ] jo yewpzdeq uebludm



J2UI0 (18 104

[BUOSIa [EIOIaWLIOD JOd

(g} uwinea u) pasn ajel afe|iu |y pull 0} sisyMm Buiprebal g afed uo suapongsul 993 | | NV LEOd N s

‘6 ULLNIOS U] BB AU uBL) Jobuef Jou ing
o1es xey eseq oyj usy) Jefiey 57 yoiym Ans] Buieiodo e Butdaeg] ¢f Jopd jawW &q JSnt 82" L LT TN JO sjustiednbal aij ‘8 UWNGO U Pamojie ajes
PEZIOYINE LNLIXRW Bl PE90X8 JOU [iiM ofym ojel & Aag] o) epioap Aewt Apog Bueaol ey ‘apz"L Lz UCHISS TOW ‘ucqexe], Ul YiiL Jepuy)

[BLOSIad
[BLISNPU pUB 18810 PayiientD By
padi[ENy ‘aouspIsay |edoud Jod

ey

{AINQ 48dQ HN pug
ddng/HH) peias 8q o] sejey
Bupesadg joMsid |ocyds 1810l

9§-92-6 ueubiqg uay Juepisald H
s1eq BWEN UK aimeufis| uosiadieyn D
91-92-6 1581048 "y eyy Alelaioeg H
f1eg BN JUNd aineublg MalD D

(g)LiezLose

aBe|n (sseiuieH PioH) leiuews|ddng e Aas] uolym SOLISID j0CUDs TYD0T 104 ‘pue $£°L LT YT L1 E SUSHEIOS DN UM Adwoo oy ‘Alessaosu

1] ‘peanpal uoed oS|e Baey Solel ArS| peysenbal eyl 1841 pue ‘{Lg uonoes ‘g ARy uormpsUYo sjElseu) Yum Ajdwos o) Alesseoau | ‘peanpal
uoeq aABY S83B) Ana| XE) pajsenbel eseu) 1yl AHLI80 @M '9AOGE PBLUIBL J|Un jusuiueAct [Bo0| 8L} 10} seaEIussaidal Ul SY T NOILY DIHILETD

Jatedald §o 8L Jequiny euaydelay, Aq pesedalg

£20¢-¢L §.658°0 0 Gl65'0 0000°L GLB6S'0 LS66°0 L0090 0029'0 | £0~60-90 HHA 98| pasop-=
pazUOLINY | | "98@ paAeT | L AP palAeT aq | , AAST afemn uonoeid E0IpESH, ugpoeid ,88|PEaH, me ‘el | uonoaly abeA a2Inog
sbejn eq oy peysenbay | 0} pajsenbey algemelly yaeqioy sBelin PyeE’LLE uagonpay afen ppetlle uanoe|g 10 el 40 esodnd (1)
josleqg afeyn abaly LuMuXely uopezienby 1O Aq peonpey | eS[pesH, 1BaA | TOW Aq ponpsy Aq pazuoyiny| (g} (z)
uonendx] {11) (oL} 8} - 1o Buisssssy Ul | Ajueusuued siByY | W8UND 9102 Apuauewiad sigy abeily
(z1) L $E'L 12 1998 abellN 9102 {9} abellinl 5102 feulBuQ
(@ () o (G {v)

uesaq aney sayed Xey BuImo|o] syl *6LL°LLE 288 I 19pun papoud sy Buij-uou to} f3jeusd

101 Xe3 9L0Z 8y} uo Ars[ Jo} paziiouine
“na1na] si xe} Apadoad e yorim doj JUSLLIAAOH JO UN YOEa J0) PajRjdluod ag IS ULO) SIY L

zle's8lse

“sajuedold [eUosiad [RIIBLILOY hus [EU0SHad
|eiasnpu| 158404 payEnt) ‘feininoly pelend ‘aouspisey [BdloUNd Buipnioxe en[eA S19BXEL 910 'SIONISH] 100495 Ty¥D0T Jod

STO0HDS 2M8Nd IMYT TYONLIHM

Ffnan obieya Bupsshbay un jueuulasics (2007

ro¥'500'88

g1-£2-G 4O SB Jun 94 U} sanredoid TV JO SNEA SIqEXE] 9108

SOXe] SelAeT Jun WSWLIADD 18007 8yl aIaUM {sofuneg

NOLSONIAIT

-z abed uo sUSRONISY) AU pead Aljnjaie)

62071 -

NIsjo A9 40 dIEUMO] YOBT (0L AdOD
{shuspedsq uopezienhs QL AJOD
{shus|n Auned 10L TYNIDING

saldde Aifeuag ‘Asepur st BUIL ‘PYEL L PUB €L 1E ‘972 L1 SUCH0RS TOW 4O AIOUNE [opUN penss] sl ULa) SIiL
SHANCISSIAKNGD 40 Q¥YOd ALNNOD QL 1H0dTE 183N0AY IV THA
(91,07 ‘0€ Jeqeideg 210450 4O U PARIWIGNS pue Paa|diied 9g 3Snu W0} siylL) “_.WOS_UQN_ ajey xel 9102

(a1-v0 Aoy) #19

finseal] Jo Juatipedsq UeBIYON



